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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (it known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Clarksburg School hptfse, located on a knoll above the town of 
Clarksburg, is the la?x remaining example in Montgomery County of a 
frame, two-room school house. Although the school has been moved about 
one hundred yards, it still occupies the prominent position it has always 
had and the compass orientation has been preserved. The moving of the 
building was necessitated by the refusal of the Montgomery County School 
Board to incorporate the older structure into the new wing of the modern 
Clarksburg Elementary School; it was thus the only alternative to 
demolition.

The building is a rectangular structure with a prominent projecting 
porch on the main (northwest) facade. The porch, in a version of the 
colonial revival with shingle style detailing, is the one consciously 
stv_lar_ feature of an otherwise vernacular structure. The entrance is 
in the center bay of the porch; flanking it are two large four over four 
double hung sash windows. The entrance itself is flanked by pilasters 
that carry a triangular pediment; the double doorway is set back from the 
wall surface and the deep reveals are panelled. The deep eaves cornice 
is returned into the gable end, which is sheathed in patterned shingles. 
The upper third of the gable projects forward, supported by five brackets. 
In the lower part of the gable is a wooden plaque with "Clarksburg School" 
in raised letters. A frieze band runs along the sides of the pediment. 
The side walls of the porch both have a single window of four over four 
hung sash; below the eaves cornice is a wide frieze band.

The classroom block runs laterally to the porch. The northeast and south­ 
west (end) walls each have five windows, all four over four double hung 
sash. They are ^grouped so that there are two double ' windows flanking a 
single window. The roof is a gabled hip, with arched windows or louvers 
(now covered with plywood) in the exposed peak of both gables. The eaves 
are deep, but unlike the porch, there is no frieze band. The entire roof 
is covered with patterned tin sheathing.

In plan, there are two classrooms opening off of the entrance way. It 
appears that the building once had a central hall with the classrooms 
opening off of it; but the wall between the hallway and the southwest 
classroom has been removed to create a larger space. In spite of their 
having been dropped several feet, the ceilings are still extremely high 
and, combined with the generous windows, create a feeling of openness and 
light. The walls were orinfsjjially plastered; later, vertical pine panel­ 
ing was installed. The flooring was originally narrow boards; it has 
been covered with asbestos tile.

The construction of the building is conventional for the early twentieth 
century. The framing members are all sawn, having come from a local saw­ 
mill. Over the studs is a sheathing of diagonally-positioned boards to 
which the weatherboarding is attached.

(see continuation sheet number 1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Clarksburg School is the last remaining of four similar frame 
structures built shortly after the turn of the century in Montgomery 
County and was in continuous service from 1909 to 1972 when it was 
scheduled to be razed to make room for new construction. A strong 
appeal from concerned citizens to save a community landmark resulted 
in the allocation of funds by the County Council to move the school 
approximately 300 feet along the crest of the hill to be clear of the 
new construction.

The community of Clarksburg is a pre-revolutionary settlement that was 
the site of a three day encampment by General Braddock and a 1754 
tavern known as Dowden's Ordinary which was tragically razed and burned, 
without public notice, less than ten years ago within sight of the 
1909 school.

The town's long history as a horse and carriage stop has provided a 
continuous tapestry of the development of rural education in America 
from the old Clarksburg Academy in 1833, to the town's first one-room 
public school on the same property., to the two-room 1909 school in 
question, to the modern consolidated school in current use, all on two 
sites within a quarter mile of each other.

Community support for public education has been evident down through 
the years--early board minutes show that Clarksburg School was the first 
in the county to be granted the ten dollars mandated by the State of 
Maryland as matching funds for ten dollars raised locally to purchase 
library books; and Miss Mary Morningstar initiated on£of the earliest hot 
lunch programs (1938) on a three-burner kerosene stove with a menu of 
turnips, cabbage,, and spinach largely donated by local farmers.

The 1909 Clarksburg School is one of the last representatives of a 
simple but effective type of school organization that occupied a signif­ 
icant niche in the history of public school education.*

*In the opinion of E. Guy Jewell, a former president of the 
Montgomery County Historical Society and a recognized authority 
on the history of Montgomery County, "THIS IS THE LAST CHANCE TO 
PRESERVE A SCHOOL OF THIS PERIOD."

(see continuation sheet #1)
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Minutes of Montgomery County School Board 
Mrs. Mary Lowe Smith (Clarksburg School principal -teacher 1925-1936) 
Miss Mary Morningstar (Clarksburg School principal -teacher 1936-1951) 
Mr. E. Guy Jewell (local historian)
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The Clarksburg School 

Number 7. Description continued.

The school building is currently vacant but a local citizen's group has 
plans for a combined restoration and adaptive use project. One room will 
be restored as a museum, many of the objects for which have already been 
donated, while the other will be adapted for use as a local arts center. 
No decision has been made yet on removing the false ceiling and pine 
paneling; these moderizations (1936) installed by an earlier generation 
are regarded by some of the local citizens as significant both because 
they represent the style and taste of another era and because they have 
become a part of the history of the building. One possibility that is 
being considered is the restoration of one room to its original appearance 
and the retention of the changes in the other. On the exterior, however, 
the plan is to restore it to an original appearance and to provide land­ 
scaping as closely resembling that of its former site as is possible. 
The present concrete foundation will be faced with stone saved from the 
original foundation, the sign "Clarksburg School" will be restored, and 
the arched openings in the gable ends will probably be uncovered.

Number 8. Significance continued.

School design did not follow an arithmetic progression from the classical 
one-room structure by simply adding one room after another, nor was there 
a sudden jump to the six or eight-room consolidated school. The two-room 
school with one room for the lower grades and one for the upper grades 
was widely used during the first half of the twentieth century and rep­ 
resented a major step in the transition to consolidated schools.

Miss Mary Morningstar who taught in the school from 1936 to 1951 
and Mrs. Mary Lowe Smith who taught from 1925 to 1936, are still residents 
of the area and available for consultation to assist in the authentic re­ 
storation of one of the two rooms as an early twentieth century classroom 
and rural life museum. Many local citizens have offered to contribute 
materials to the museum and some items, including an early ballot box 
which was used for years during the school's service as a polling place 
and tape recordings of the recollections of old-timers in the area, have 
already been acquired.

The second room is to be developed as a local arts and crafts center 
to insure a continued vitality for the old school. The museum and the arts 
and crafts center should supplement each other in sustaining community 
interest down through the years.
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Christopher Owens, Historian
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
5107 Muncaster Mill Road
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